
  
 

 

 

CITY OF SAN RAMON 

OPEN SPACE TASK FORCE 

SUMMARY OF ACTION 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

CHAIR CAROL LOPEZ • VICE CHAIR DAVID ERNEST •  

DONNA KERGER • HARRY SACHS • DOMINIQUE YANCEY 

CITIZEN MEMBER JOHN YOUNGBLOOD • GHAD LIAISON PHIL O’LOANE 

 
San Ramon Council Chamber 
2222 Camino Ramon 

 
Meeting Time

March 12, 2012 - 5:30 P.M.
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 5:32 p.m. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL 

Present:  Chair Carol Lopez; Vice Chair David Ernest; Donner Kerger; Harry Sachs; 
Dominique Yancey; John Youngblood; and Phil O’Loane 

Absent:  None 

Staff:  Phil Wong, Planning/Community Development Director; Debbie Chamberlain, 
Planning Services Division Manager; Robin Bartlett, District Engineer/Division 
Manager; Karen McNamara, Public Services Director & Interim Parks & Community 
Development Director; and Debbie Hince, Recording Secretary 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
-None- 

5. CONSENT ITEMS 
-None- 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 6.1 Summary of Actions from the February 13, 2012 meeting.  Approved as amended. 

7. TASK FORCE BUSINESS 
 

Page 1 of 4 



Larry Tong, Interagency Planning Manager Land Division of the East Bay Regional Parks 
District (District), gave an overview of the District’s Master Plan. 
 
The District’s Master Plan was adopted in 1977 and updated in 2007.  There are over 111,000 
acres of parkland and 1,200 miles of trails within the District’s jurisdiction. 
 
In 2008, Measure WW was approved by Alameda County and Contra Costa County voters.  This 
measure was an extension of Measure AA that was originally approved by voters in 1988 and 
provides funding of $500 million over the next 20 years.  Of note, the Murray Township area is not 
included in these Measure WW funding dollars as it was not part of the District at the time when 
Measure AA was originally approved. 
 
The City of San Ramon currently has parks/trails maintained and operated by the District and 
include Bishop Ranch, Las Trampas and the Iron Horse Trail.  
 
Potential Parks for the District would include the Calavaras Ridge Trail and Tassajara Creek 
Trail north to Mt. Diablo.  Access for the Calavaras Ridge Trail will be by City streets. 
 
Mr. Tong stated that the Iron Horse Trail usage is conflicting with through traffic and that the 
District is currently conducting a feasibility study for overcrossings at Bollinger Canyon Road and 
Crow Canyon Road within the City, and Sycamore Road in Danville. 
 
Ms. Yancey asked if Measure WW funds were to be used for the Calavaras Ridge Trail and the 
Tassajara Creek Trail.  Mr. Tong stated that $11.3 million would be used for the Calavaras Ridge 
Trail and $875,000 would be used for the Tassajara Creek Trail. 
 
Mr. O’Loane asked if the District had to own the underlying property that a park or trail was on. 
Mr. Tong stated no, and then explained that the District acquires land mostly through Long Term 
Lease Agreements (minimum of 25 years), Conservation Easements, and/or Fee Ownerships.  
 
Ms. Yancey asked for an explanation of a Conservation Easement. Mr. Tong explained that this is 
used for land conservation only, the property is not owned by the District, and the property owner 
still retains ownership of the land.    
 
Mr. Tong gave an example of Schaeffer Ranch in Dublin and a Zone of Benefit that provides for 
the operation and maintenance of the staging area located there.  Each parcel (327) in this 
development is assessed a fee that covers this Zone of Benefit, in this case $27.50 per parcel.   
 
Ms. Yancey asked what the assessment dollars the Zone of Benefit paid for. Mr. Tong replied that 
the dollars go to fund trail, gate, fencing and grazing maintenance. 
 
Ms. Yancey asked if any part of the Calavaras Ridge Trail was earmarked in San Ramon. Mr. 
Tong replied that Calavaras Ridge Trail currently runs through Las Trampas Regional Park and 
the Dublin Hills.  There is a gap between Alameda County and Contra Costa County boundary 
lines, North to San Ramon from Dublin.   
 
 

Page 2 of 4 



Ms. Yancey further asked if this land would be acquired by the District to complete the connection. 
Mr. Tong stated that the District would work with the City and/or property owner to acquire the 
land at the time any project was proposed. 
 
Ms. Chamberlain stated that the land currently needed to complete this connection between the 
two counties is within Contra Costa County’s jurisdiction. 
 
Mr. Sachs asked if the District had Conservation Easements on parcels that are currently under 
the Williamson Act.  Mr. Tong stated no, as Williamson Act parcels are on 10-year agreements to 
keep the parcel as agricultural and compatible open-space land and essentially are “Conservation 
Easements.” 
 
Mr. O’Loane asked Mr. Tong on the length of time that it takes the District to acquire land.  Mr. 
Tong replied that the process is opportunity-driven and if there is property available and the 
funding deadline is close, the District could move quickly to acquire the property if the funds are 
available.  However, the economic situation has impacted the District and most acquisitions take 
multi-years if not multi-decades for processing due to funding sources. 
 
Seth Adams of Save Mount Diablo asked if the per capita funds received from Measure WW have 
been spent or programmed yet within the City.  
 
Karen McNamara stated that the City received $2.6 million and $1.4-1.5 million has already been 
contracted or programmed.  There is an additional $950,000 that has not been contracted or 
programmed but set aside for improvements at Central Park.   
 
Mr. Adams commented that the Zone of Benefit assessment districts are created before lots are 
sold so that the negotiation is with one owner and not many.   
 
In terms of the Measure WW per capita or other funding sources, there is a per capita amount of 
money that the District devotes to each local jurisdiction but beyond that money, the District has 
in more than one case, matched dollars that a city puts up for a joint project, if it is beneficial to 
both the city and District.   
 
Mr. Sachs asked if this was above and beyond the per capita dollars.  Mr. Adams stated yes it was 
if the project meets the Districts interests as well.  
 
Mr. Adams stated that the Measure WW bonds accrue interest which is then allocated to projects 
in a geographic distribution.  The District Board has an interest into which projects these 
unallocated interest monies are used for.   
 
Mr. Adams mentioned that The Doolan Canyon Park is new to the District, is located near San 
Ramon, is in both Contra Costa and Alameda counties, and can be expanded in a variety of 
different directions.  It should be mentioned that sometimes the trails within the District include 
large parcels of land that are more like parks than trails.   
 
Mr. Adams stated that the Walnut Creek Land Trust was created with three cities as a resource 
district under the county and was later transferred to several cities and included two bonds; one 

Page 3 of 4 



Page 4 of 4 

for Concord and Walnut Creek and the other for Walnut Creek, Concord and Clayton.  The 
Walnut Creek Open Space system is owned entirely by the City, there is no land trust and is funded 
by the City.  Walnut Creek is unusual in that it was early in acquiring city open space as an 
acquisition rather than development dedications. 
 
Mr. Ernest wanted to thank Mr. Tong and Mr. Adams for coming to this meeting and providing 
valuable information. 
 

8. CONTINUED ITEMS 
-None- 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted: 
   Debbie Hince 


	San Ramon Council Chamber
	2222 Camino Ramon
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT ITEMS
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES

	6.1
	Summary of Actions from the February 13, 2012 meeting.  Approved as amended.
	TASK FORCE BUSINESS
	Larry Tong, Interagency Planning Manager Land Division of the East Bay Regional Parks District (District), gave an overview of the District’s Master Plan.
	CONTINUED ITEMS
	ADJOURNMENT

